
          

 

 

CAPTAIN’S KEY 
DEPENDENT DISTRICT 

 

PALM BEACH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

MAY 9, 2023 
6:00 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.captainskeydd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

CAPTAIN’S KEY DEPENDENT DISTRICT 
The Oaks Center at 2501A 

Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens 
Florida 33410 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
May 9, 2023 

6:00 p.m. 
 

            
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………….Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. March 14, 2023 Regular Board Meeting………………………………………………………..Page 2 

G. Old Business 

1. Update on Captains Landing Cul-De-Sac Drainage Repair 

2. Update on Polymer Stabilization 

H. New Business 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Financial Report………………………………………………………………………………...Page 6 

2. Consider Invoices……………………………………………………………………………….Page 10 

J. Board Members Comments 

K. Adjourn 



Page 1



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

CAPTAIN’S KEY DEPENDENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MARCH 14, 2023 
 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager Jason Pierman called the March 14, 2023, Regular Board Meeting of the Captain’s 
Key Dependent District (the “District”) to order at 6:05 p.m. at The Oaks Center located at 2501A 
Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Mr. Pierman presented proof of publication that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the Palm Beach Daily Business Review on September 30, 2022, as part of the District’s 
Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Meeting Schedule, as legally required.  
 
C. SEAT NEW BOARD MEMBERS 
 
Mr. Pierman noted that Messrs. Mahoney, Jave, and Jones had been sworn in prior to the meeting 
starting, to Seats 1, 2 and 3, respectively.   
 
D. ADMINISTER OATH OF OFFICE AND REVIEW BOARD MEMBER 
RESPONSIBILITIES & DUTIES 
 
 
 
 
E. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
Mr. Pierman determined that the attendance of Chairman John Banister, Vice Chairman Russell 
Jones, Supervisor Trey Mahoney, Supervisor Yefry Jave, and Supervisor Judge Moss constituted a 
quorum and it was in order to proceed with the meeting.   
 
Staff in attendance included:  District Manager Jason Pierman. 
 
F. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 
Mr. Pierman explained that with every election or change in the Board, the Board must elect officers.  
Following a discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Jones, seconded by Mr. Banister and unanimously 
passed to elect the following slate of officers: 
 
Chair: John Banister  
Vice Chair: Russell Jones 
Treasurer: Yefry Jave 
Assistant Secretary: Try Mahoney 
Assistant Secretary: Judge Moss 
Secretary/ Assistant Treasurer: Jason Pierman  

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

G. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 
Mr. Pierman noted that a discussion regarding the Caldwell Pacetti invoice would be added under 
New Business. 
 
H. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  November 8, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 
 
Mr. Pierman presented the minutes of November 8, 2022, Regular Board Meeting for approval.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Mahoney, seconded by Mr. Jones approving the minutes of the November 
8, 2022, Regular Board Meeting, as presented, and upon being put to a vote, the motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
J. OLD BUSINESS 
 1. Discussion Regarding Captain’s Landing Cul-de-Sac Drainage Repair 
 
Mr. Pierman explained that he had met a few companies onsite, and no one was able to give a 
confident proposal, due to the potential issues with the line and limited access.  However, the 
estimates were in the $30,000 ballpark.  Mr. Jones suggested digging around where the pipes connect 
and injecting around it to seal the connection.  Following discussion, the Board consensus was to 
move forward with that plan, provided it could be done without disturbing the neighbors’ hardscaping 
and landscaping.   
 
K. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Proposal for Additional Polymer Stabilizations 
 
Mr. Pierman presented the proposal from Shenandoah.  Mr. Jones requested that they backfill dirt 
where needed.  Following discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Mahoney, seconded by Mr. 
Banister, and unanimously passed approving the proposal and an additional not-to-exceed amount of 
$3,000 to include the cul-de-sac line.   
 
 2. Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2023-01, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE CAPTAIN’S 
KEY DEPENDENT DISTRICT APPROVING A PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Following discussion regarding the cost of repaving the roads and the fact that the District had used 
capital funds for gate and landscaping related improvements, while at the same time reducing 
assessments over the years, the Board consensus was to increase assessments by $500. 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 
A motion was made by Mr. Mahoney, seconded by Mr. Jones, and unanimously passed adopting 
Resolution No. 2023-01, amended with the assessment amount increased to $3,500, setting the Public 
Hearing for June 13, 2023. 
 
 3.  Discussion Regarding Caldwell Pacetti Invoice 
 
Mr. Pierman distributed the Caldwell Pacetti invoice, as well as Ms. Jones’ email regarding it.  Mr. 
Jones noted that he did not think that the interaction was equitable for him because the conversations 
were one-sided.  Mr. Banister stated that he was providing Mr. Edwards with information regarding 
his request for an easement.  Following discussion, Mr. Pierman noted that he had brought Mr. 
Edwards into the discussion and that the majority of the items listed in the invoice were undertaken 
at his request, in an effort to protect the District.  He further explained that Mr. Edwards had reduced 
his invoice by $5,000, likely due to the unexpectedly large amount of research that was performed 
and the fact that Mr. Banister had sent him additional information.  Mr. Moss noted that he thought 
Mr. Edwards did the right thing by reducing his bill in recognition that it may have been one-sided, 
and that Mr. Edwards was impartial, but that he sees Mr. Jones’ point.  Mr. Mahoney agreed that there 
was no malicious intent, and questioned if he would be allowed to contact Mr. Edwards if he had an 
issue.  Mr. Jave recommended that in the future, they appoint an impartial Board Member to speak 
with the attorney instead of a conflicted Board Member.  Mr. Jones requested that Mr. Edwards’ 
invoice be redacted to exclude items related to Mr. Banister’s interactions and requests.   
 
Following the meeting, Mr. Pierman reviewed the invoice for only those items that were directly 
initiated by him as District Manager, for the benefit of the District.  The cost for those items was, 
conservatively, $4,089, of which $3,149 was billed. 
 
L. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

 
1.  Financial Report 

 
 2.  Consider Invoices 
 
M. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Pierman suggested that, considering that a large portion of discussion that takes place in the 
District meeting is actually POA business, the Board look at dissolving the District and having the 
POA take over the gate operation.  He noted that research would need to be done to explore that 
possibility.  The Board consensus was to move forward with the research.   
 
N. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mr. Jones, seconded 
by Mr. Mahoney and unanimously passed adjourning the Regular Board Meeting at 8:04 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
 
__________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 
 

Page 5



 Captain's Key
Dependent District

   Financial Report For
April 2023

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



 12:32 PM
 05/01/23
 Accrual Basis

 Captain's Key Dependent District

 Check Register
 As of May 1, 2023

Date Num Name Memo Credit

101.125 ꞏ CSB # 6006

03/15/2023 Comcast 208.40

03/16/2023 Frontsteps 330.75

03/16/2023 Power Plant 1,150.00

03/16/2023 Victory 457.05

04/04/2023 FPL 61.18

04/04/2023 Seacoast 239.66

04/04/2023 SDS 2,042.16

04/18/2023 Comcast 208.40

04/18/2023 Greentone 219.00

04/18/2023 Power Plant 1,150.00

04/18/2023 Victory 270.00

Total 101.125 ꞏ CSB # 6006 6,336.60

TOTAL 6,336.60

 Page 1 of 1Page 10


	Captain's Key Dependent District - May 9, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	March 14, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Financial Report
	Consider Invoices




